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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

Dear Shareholders, e

It gives me immense pleasure to welcome you all on behalf of the esteemed members of the
Board to the First (01%') Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Ircon Bhoj Morbe Expressway
Limited (IrconBMEL). The Directors’ Report and the Audited Financial Statements for the
period from 06" January, 2022 to 31t March, 2023, are already with you and with your kind
permission, | take them as read. | would like to express my sincere gratitude for making it
convenient for attending the AGM.

Ircon International Limited (IRCON”) has been awarded the work of construction of Eight
Lane access-controlled Expressway from Km 69.800 to Km 79.783 (Bhoj to Morbe Section -
SPUR of Vadodara Mumbai Expressway) in the State of Maharashtra on Hybrid Annuity Mode
under Bharatmala Pariyojana (Phase Il — Pkg XVII) (‘the Project’) by National Highway
Authority of India (NHAI). In terms of condition stipulated in Letter of Award issued by NHAI,
IRCON has incorporated your Company as its wholly-owned subsidiary and a Special Purpose
Vehicle for execution of the Project.

| would like to place before you, few highlights of your Company, IrconBMEL.

IrconBMEL has signed Concession Agreement with NHAI on 18" February, 2022. The
concession period of the Project comprises of construction period of 910 days from the
appointed date, i.e. 19" January, 2023 and operation period of 15 years commencing from
Commercial Operation Date (COD).

As per Concession Agreement, the Bid Project Cost is Rs.1,436.00 crore plus GST(excluding
escalation). The 40% of the project bid cost shall be reimbursed by NHAI during construction
phase and balance 60% will be receivable after construction in the form of Annuity. The
company will finance the cost of project by way of debt of Rs.823.39 crore & equity of
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Rs.205.85 crore. In respect of debt, Bank of Baroda (BOB) has sanctioned the term loan of
Rs.823.39 crore. During the financial year, total equity of Rs.6.77 crore has been infused by
Ircon International Limited.

IRCON has been appointed as EPC Contractor for execution of the project work including
O&M for five (05) years at EPC price of Rs.1,321.25 crore plus applicable GST. Presently, the
construction activities at project has started from the appointed date of 19" January, 2023 and
the works are progressing on the available front.

Compliances and Disclosures

Corporate Governance: Compliances and Disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules thereunder are being fully adhered to by your Company. As per Office Memorandum
dated 10" July 2014 and 11" July 2019 issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE),
CPSEs constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) are exempted from compliance of the
DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs. Hence, these are not applicable on
your company.

Memorandum of Understanding (MoU): Your Company has requested IRCON to grant it
exemption from compliance of Annual MoU exercise for the financial year 2022-23 and 2023-
24, in line with the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) Guidelines issued by Department of
Public Enterprises (DPE) dated 10" March, 2023 and IRCON vide its letters dated 07%
November, 2022 and 06" February, 2023 has granted exemption to the Company from
compliance of Annual MOU exercise for the financial year 2022-23 and 2023-24 respectively.

Acknowledgements

I, on behalf of Board of Directors, express my heartfelt thanks for the valuable assistance and
co-operation extended to the Company by MoRTH, NHAI, Ircon International Limited, Auditors
of the Company and all those who have supported and guided us during the year. | express
my deep gratitude to employees for their dedication, intellect, hard work. And last, but not
least, | would like to thank my colleagues on the Board for their guidance and continuous
support.

We look forward to your continued support in our journey ahead.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon Bhoj Morbe Expressway Limited

Sd/-
Devendra Kumar Sharma
Chairman
DIN: 08556821
Date: 01.08.2023
Place: New Delhi


https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 01 Annual Report of Ircon Bhoj
Morbe Expressway Limited (IrconBMEL) together with the Audited Financial Statements of
the Company and Auditor's Report for the period from 06" January, 2022 (i.e. date of
incorporation) to 31st March, 2023.

BUSINESS OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS: PRESENT STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS:

IrconBMEL, a wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON International Limited (IRCON) was
incorporated on 06" January, 2022 as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) with the main object
to carry the business of Construction of Eight Lane Access Controlled Expressway from Km
69.800 to Km 79.783 (Bhoj to Morbe Section - SPUR of Vadodara Mumbai Expressway) (‘the
Project’) in the State of Maharashtra on Hybrid Annuity Mode under Bharatmala Pariyojana
(Phase Il — Pkg XVII) by National Highway Authority of India (NHAI).

IrconBMEL has entered into Concession Agreement with NHAI on 18" February, 2022 and
the concession period of the project comprises of construction period of 910 days from the
appointed date and operation period of 15 years commencing from Commercial Operation
Date (COD). IRCON has been appointed as EPC Contractor in terms of technical bid
submitted by IRCON to NHAI.

As per Concession Agreement, the Bid Project Cost is Rs.1,436.00 crore plus GST(excluding
escalation). The 40% of the project bid cost shall be reimbursed by NHAI during construction
phase and balance 60% will be receivable after construction in the form of Annuity. The
company will finance the cost of project by way of debt of Rs.823.39 crore & equity of
Rs.205.85 crore. In respect of debt, Bank of Baroda (BOB) has sanctioned the term loan of
Rs.823.39 crore. During the financial year, total equity of Rs.6.77 crore has been infused by
Ircon International Limited.

IRCON has been appointed as EPC Contractor for execution of the project work including
O&M for five (05) years at EPC price of Rs.1,321.25 crore plus applicable GST. Presently,
the construction activities at project has started from the appointed date of 19" January,
2023 and the works are progressing on the available front.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

In pursuance of the provisions enumerated under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, the Company, has prepared its annual financial statements for the for the period
from 06" January, 2022 to 315t March, 2023 as per Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS).

birectors'ﬁzport
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Financial performance indicators for the period from 06" January, 2022 to
31%t March 2023:
(Rs. in lakh)
Sl. Particulars For the Year period from
No. 06.01.2022 to 31.03.2023
1. Equity Share Capital 5.00
2. Other Equity (includes Reserves and Surplus) 672.38
3. Net Worth 677.38
4. Total Assets and Liabilities 3,136.45
5. Revenue from Operations 2,662.41
6. Total Income 2,662.41
7. Profit Before Tax (0.05)
8. Profit After Tax (0.12)
Earnings Per Equity Share (on face value of
9 Rs.1p/— per share) (0.24)
() Basic (0.24)
(i)  Diluted

*Note: The company is incorporated on 06" January, 2022 as wholly owned subsidiary of
Ircon International Limited and this is the first financial period of incorporation of the
company hence corresponding figure of previous period not provided.

DIVIDEND & APPROPRIATION TO RESERVE:

Your Company’s Project is under initial stage of construction, hence, there is no operational
income/profit, so your Company do not propose to carry any amount to the reserves for the
Financial Year ended 31%t March, 2023.

In view of the status of the Project which is on the initial stages of construction, the Board of
Directors have not recommended any dividend on the equity shares for the period under
review.

As per the applicability of Ind AS, Reserves are reflected as Retained Earnings under the
head “Other Equity" in Financial Statements and your Company has a balance of Rs.(0.12)
lakhs in Retained Earnings as on 31 March 2023.

SHARE CAPITAL/ DEMATERIALISATION:

Your Company was incorporated with an Authorized Share Capital and the Paid-up Share
Capital of the Company of Rs.5 lakh comprising of 50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each.
Ircon International Limited (IRCON) hold 100% of the paid-up share capital of IrconBMEL.
During the financial year ended on 315t March, 2023, there was no change in the share
capital of your Company, and Ircon International Limited (IRCON) continues to hold 100%
paid-up share capital of IrconBMEL.
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After closure of the Financial Year 2022-23, the Company has increased its Authorized
Share Capital from Rs.5 lakh to Rs.21 crore and Paid-up Share Capital from Rs.5 lakh to
Rs.5.20 crore.

As per Rule 9A of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Amendment
Rules, 2019 dated 22" January, 2019, the Company being a wholly owned subsidiary
(WoS) is not required to get its securities in dematerialised form.

CASH FLOWS FROM THE PROJECT:

The Company is having a negative Cash Flows from operating activities of Rs.672.64 lakh
for the financial year ended 315t March 2023.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

For the period under review, there was no Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies
of the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL:

Board of Directors:

CATEGORY & NAME OF THE DIRECTORS WITH DESIGNATION DURING THE PERIOD
FROM 06™ JANUARY, 2022 TO 315" MARCH 2023:

As per Articles of Association of the Company, the Board of the Company is appointed by
the holding company (IRCON).

As on 31t March, 2023, total number of Director is Four including Chairman, nominated by
IRCON. Details of Directors are as follows:

Category, Name & Designation Appointment or Cessation (during

the year, if any)

Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma, 08556821 Appointed as Additional Part-time

Chairman Director and Chairman w.e.f.
10.10.2022

Mr. B. Mugunthan, Director 08517013 -

Mr. Masood Ahmad, Director 09008553 | -

Mr. Manoj Kumar, Director 09766366 | Appointed as Additional Part-time
Director w.e.f. 14.10.2022

Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal, Chairman (Part-time Nominee) of your Company, ceased to be the
Director and Chairman of your Company consequent to withdrawal of nomination by the
IRCON w.e.f. 10" October 2022.

Mr. Parag Verma, Director (Part-time Nominee) of your Company, ceased to be the Director
of your Company consequent to withdrawal of nomination by the IRCON w.e.f. 10" October
2022.


https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
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The Board placed on record its appreciation for valuable contribution, guidance and support
given by Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal and Mr. Parag Verma.

Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma, Director, was nominated by IRCON as Chairman and
Additional Part-time Director of the Company w.e.f. 10" October 2022, who hold office upto
the date of the Annual General Meeting. The Company has received a notice under section
160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma giving his candidature
for appointment as Chairman and Director, liable to retire by rotation, in the Annual General
Meeting (AGM). His appointment as Director by Shareholders is included in the notice of the
AGM.

Further, Mr. Manoj Kumar, Director, was nominated by IRCON as Additional Part-time
Director of the Company w.e.f. 14" October 2022, who hold office upto the date of the
Annual General Meeting. The Company has received a notice under section 160 of the
Companies Act, 2013 from Mr. Manoj Kumar giving his candidature for appointment as
Director, liable to retire by rotation, in the Annual General Meeting (AGM). His appointment
as Director by Shareholders is included in the notice of the AGM.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152(6) the Companies Act, 2013, all Directors
of the Company shall be liable to retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting of your
Company. Mr. B. Mugunthan and Mr. Masood Ahmad being the First Directors of the
Company appointed on the same date i.e. 06" January, 2022 and Mr. B. Mugunthan will
retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting of your Company and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment. The Board of Directors recommends his reappointment as
Director and his brief resume is annexed to the Notice of the Annual General Meeting.

None of the Directors is disqualified from being appointed/re-appointed as Director.

Key Management Personnel (KMP):

As per Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company is not required to appoint
any Key Management Personnel (KMP) during the period under review.

Board Meetings:

During the period under review, the Board met nine (9) times on 06.01.2022, 17.01.2022
08.02.2022, 17.05.2022, 22.07.2022, 04.08.2022, 25.08.2022, 03.11.2022 and 31.01.2023.
The interval between the Board Meetings were within the period prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013. The attendance detail of the Board Meetings is as follows:

Date of The Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors Present
06.01.2022 4 4
17.01.2022 4 4
08.02.2022 4 4
17.05.2022 4 4
22.07.2022 4 4
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04.08.2022 4 3
25.08.2022 4 3
03.11.2022 4 4
31.01.2023 4 4

The table below shows attendance of the Board members at the Board Meetings held
during the period under review:

Name of Meeting Date Total No. of % of
Directors Board Board Attendan
Meeting Meetings (o]}
entitted to  attended
attend during
during the  the
period period
N AN N AN AN N N N (92] ul ul
N EEE RN RN RN ARG fom B0 [lom 20
N 8§ 8|S QSIS % anuary,
did|l 8588 d|d 2022 to 2022 to
S| ~|oo|~| || w| o o EIEEEEEE
o — o — (qV] o N o ™ 2023 March,
2023
Mr. Ashok VIV |V |V |V V|V |- - 7 7 100
Kumar Goyal
Mr. Parag VIiVvIiVv IV |V I|* |V |V |V 9 8 88.89
Verma
Mr. B. VIV VIV IVIVIV IV |V 9 9 100
Mugunthan
Mr. Masood vVIiVI VIV I VIV |*X|YV|V 9 8 88.89
Ahmad
Mr.Devendra | - | - | - | - | - | - |- |Y |V 2 2 100
Kumar
Sharma
Mr. Manoj S N e N B B B R A 2 2 100
Kumar

9. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS & BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
GUIDELINES ISSUED BY DPE:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its notification dated 05" July, 2017 exempted an
unlisted public company which are wholly-owned subsidiary from the requirement of
appointing Independent Directors on its Board and constitution of Audit Committee and
Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC).

IrconBMEL, an unlisted public company and a wholly-owned subsidiary company of
IRCON, therefore, is not required to appoint any Independent Director on its Board and the
declaration by the Independent Directors is not applicable on the Company.

Further, in terms of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE)'s Office Memorandum (OM)
dated July 8-10, 2014, read with OM dated 11" July, 2019, CPSE’s constituted as Special
Purpose Vehicle (SPV) are exempted from compliance with the DPE Guidelines on
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Corporate Governance for CPSEs. Hence, Corporate Governance Guidelines of DPE are
not applicable on IrconBMEL.

. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

The Board of Directors of the Company confirms:

a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended
31st March 2023, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

b) that such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgment
and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year March 31,
2023 and of the Profit & Loss of the Company for that period ended on that date;

c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;

d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) that proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

. DIRECTOR’S OBSERVATION AND COMMENT'S FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(EXPLANATION FOR ANY COMMENTS MADE BY AUDITORS IN THEIR REPORT:

The Notes to Accounts forming part of the financial statements are self-explanatory and
need no further explanation.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditors’ Report which require any
clarification/explanation.

STATUTORY AUDITORS:

M/s. Ahmad Shukla Jain & Associates, Chartered Accountants, had been appointed as
Statutory Auditors, for the period from January 06, 2022 to March 31, 2023 by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India vide CAG letter No./CA.V/COY/Central
Government, IRCBME(1)/2009 dated 04" May, 2022 which was rectify by the Members of
the Company at the first EGM held on 17" May, 2022. They have confirmed by way of a
written consent and certificate as required under Section 139(1) of the Companies Act,
2013.

STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT AND C&AG COMMENTS

The reports of the Statutory Auditors on the Financial Statements for the period from 06"
January, 2022 to 315t March, 2023 with nil observation are attached separately as part of the

10
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Annual Report along with Non-Review Certificate received from Comptroller & Auditor
General (C&AG) of India for the period from 06" January, 2022 to 315t March, 2023.

14. COST RECORDS

Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1)
of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to the Company during period
under review.

15. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The requirement of obtaining a Secretarial Audit Report under Section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013 from the practicing company secretary is not applicable to the
Company during period under review.

16. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

There are no transactions of loans, guarantees and investments as covered under the
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the during period under
review.

17. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

During period under review, the related party transactions with the holding company, IRCON
were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis and approved in terms
of the Companies Act 2013. The details of the related party transactions in form AOC-2 are
enclosed to this report as Annexure — A.

18. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY AFTER THE CLOSURE OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

No material changes and commitments have occurred which affect the financial position of
the Company between the end of the financial year and the date of this report except as
mentioned in this Annual Report.

19. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The particulars as prescribed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are set out hereunder:

A. Conservation of enerqy: -

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing of
particulars is not applicable to the Company.

11
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Technology absorption: -

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing of
particulars is not applicable to the Company.

Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: -

There was no Foreign Exchange Earnings and Foreign Exchange Outgo during the period
under review.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

In the opinion of the Board, presently the Company does not foresee any major threat/risk to
the business of the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

The provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) under Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 were not applicable to the Company during the period under review.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

As per Notification dated 05" June, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government Companies are exempted from complying with the provisions of Section 197 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and corresponding rules under Chapter XIlI.

IrconBMEL being a Government Company is not required to disclose information on the
remuneration of employees falling under the criteria prescribed under rule 5(2) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel), as a part of the
Directors' Report.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company during the period under
review.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

During the period under review, your Company has not invited any deposits from its
members pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has adequate system of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. All the transactions were properly authorized, recorded and reported to the
Management. The Company is following all the applicable Indian Accounting Standards for
properly maintaining the books of account and reporting in the financial statements. Your

12
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Company continues to ensure proper and adequate systems and procedures
commensurate with its size and nature of its business.

SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

No order has passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern
status of the Company and its operations in future during the period under review.

COMPLIANCE OF MSME GUIDELINES FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF PURCHASE
PREFERNCE POLICY

In exercise of powers conferred by section 9 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006, the Central Government issued instructions that all companies
registered under the Companies Act, 2013 with a turnover of more than Rs.500 crore and all
CPSEs shall be required to get themselves on-boarded on the Trade Receivables
Discounting System (TReDS) platform, set up as per the notification of the Reserve Bank of
India. The Registrar of Companies (RoC) in each State shall be the competent authority to
monitor the compliance of such instructions and also the Department of Public Enterprises,
Government of India shall be the competent authority to monitor the compliance of such
instructions by the CPSEs. The Company was incorporated on January 06, 2022 and has
received Appointed Date w.e.f. 19.01.2023 to commence construction. Registration on
TReDS Platform will be done during the FY 2023-24.

DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company being a wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, ‘Policy for Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at Workplace’ of IRCON (POSH Policy) is applicable
on the Company and the Internal Committee of IRCON deals with all the matters under
POSH Act.

During the period under review, there was no incidence where any complaint relating to
sexual harassment was reported pursuant Section 22 of The Sexual Harassment of Women

at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

VIGIL MECHANISM:

The provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to establishing of a
vigil mechanism are not applicable to Company during period under review.

RIGHT TO INFORMATION:

No application under Right to Information Act, 2005 was received by your company during
the period under review., however, RTI application transferred from DPE was duly replied.

13
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PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD MEMBERS:

Pursuant to the notification of Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 5" June 2015, sub-
sections (2), (3) & (4) of Sec. 178 regarding the performance evaluation shall not apply to
Directors of Government Company.

Being a Government Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited,
all part-time Directors are nominated by the holding company, IRCON. The evaluation of
these nominated directors is done by the holding company as per pre-defined criteria in line
with the guidelines of the Government of India. Hence, performance evaluation of Directors
is not applicable on your company.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the period, the Company is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

APPLICATION/PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY & BANKRUPTCY
CODE, 2016

There are no proceeding initiated/ pending against the Company under the Insolvency &
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 which materially impact the business of the Company.

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MoU):

Pursuant to the provision of Consolidated Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) Guidelines
dated 10" March, 2023 of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), Companies, that are
subsidiary company of a CPSE, will sign Annual MOU with its holding company and holding
company is free to take a decision regarding exemption from MoU for its subsidiary
companies and process of exemption shall ordinarily be completed by 31t of March of the
base year.

Your Company, incorporated as wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON (holding company) and
Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV), will sign Annual MoU with IRCON.

During the period under review, your Company requested IRCON to grant it exemption from
compliance of Annual MOU exercise for the FY 2023-24, in line with the MOU Guidelines
and IRCON vide its letter dated 06™ February, 2023 has granted exemption to the
Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

We thank Ircon International Limited, Ministry of Road Transport & Highways (MORTH)/
National Highway Authority of India (NHAI), various other Government Agencies, Banks,
Comptroller & Auditor General of India (CA&G) and Statutory Auditors, for their support, and
look forward to their continued support in the future.

We also place on record our appreciation for the contribution made by our employees at all
levels. Your Board of Directors also takes this opportunity to convey their gratitude and
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sincere thanks for the cooperation and assistance received from the Shareholders during
the period under report. Our consistent growth was made possible by their hard work,
solidarity, cooperation and support.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon Bhoj Morbe Expressway Limited

Sd/-
Devendra Kumar Sharma
Chairman
DIN: 08556821
Date:01.08.2023
Place:New Delhi
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ANNEXURE -A

FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso
thereto during the period from 06" January, 2022 to 315 March, 2023

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL
2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis: as follows

Salient terms

Duration  of | of the
the contracts | Contracts or | Date(s) of Amount
Sr. | Nature of contracts or or Arrangements | approval by paid as
No. | arrangements or transactions |arrangements | or the Board, if |advances,
or Transactions | any: if any:
transactions | including the
value, if any
EPC Agreement Agreement
(For Appointing Ircon dated 11th
International Limited as EPC August, 2022.
Contractor for construction,
maintenance and management The Contract

910 days from

of Eight lane access controlled . has been
1 Expressway from Km 69.800 to ’:jhaeteazﬁglrslted awarded to 22nd July, )
" | Km 79.783 (Bhoj to Morbe year O&M IRCQN fc_)r a 2022 '
Section — Spur of Vadodara Period consideration
Mumbai Expressway) in the of Rs.1,321.25
State of Maharashtra on EPC crore Plus
mode under Bharatmala GST.
Pariyojna (Phase Il - Package
XVII).
Lease
Agreement
Lease Agreement One Years executed on i
2. | (To take on lease the Office (01.02.2022 to | 18t February, 06 éjgg;ary, ,(;lrluLDg;\es)
Premises of IRCON) 31.03.2023)* 2022 for rent
@ Rs.21,236/-
p.m. plus GST*

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon Bhoj Morbe Expressway Limited

Sd/-
Devendra Kumar Sharma
Chairman
DIN: 08556821
Date:01.08.2023
Place: New Delhi
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% AHMAD SHUKLA JAIN & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF IRCON BHOJ MORBE EXPRESSWAY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the IndAS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Ind AS financial statements of IRCON BHOJ MORBE
EXPRESSWAY LIMITED (the “company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
31st March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the
period from 06th January 2022 (Date of incorporation) to 31st March 2023, and the
notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules.2015, as
amended, (“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31. 2023, the profit and loss and total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the period from 06th
January 2022 (Date of incorporation) to 3 1st March 2023.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with Lhe
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the [nd AS Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 and the Rules made there under. and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the finaneial statements.

Office : lind Floor, 926, Gali No. 1, Naiwala, Kargl Bagh, New Delhi-110005 Tel : 011-4508-7156
Mobile: 98101-21215, 99712-96596 email: ahmedfca@gmail.com www.caahmad.com



Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are shose matters that, in our pmfcssional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the current financial
period from 06th January 2022 (Date of incorporation) 1o 115t March 2023. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the ind AS financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

We have determined that there are no Key Audit Matiers to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the i mformation included in the
Company's annual report but does nol include the Ind AS financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements dogs not cover the other in formation and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereor.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is 10
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during

the course of our audit of otherwise appears 1o be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information. we arc required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Companies Acl, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified undet scetion 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2013, as amended from time to time.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting tecords in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
teasonable and prudent; and design. implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, {hat were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records. relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a truc and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due 10 fraud or errofr.
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In preparing the financial statemcnis, management 15 responsible for assessing the
Companys ability 10 conlinue as & going concern, disclosing, as applicable. matters
elated to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or 1o ceasc operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to da so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Comipany’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Ind AS Finaneial Statements

Our objectives arc to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not @ guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate. they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skeplicism throughott ihe audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 1o
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 10 provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting o material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, Of the override of internal
control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under sec tion143(3)(i) of
the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the approprialeness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimales and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the zoing concern basis of
aceounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to evenis or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability 1o continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exisis, we arc required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 10 the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguale,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease 10 continue as a going conceri.
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, Siructure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures. and whether the financ ial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledzeable uscr of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evalualing the results of our work: and (ii) to evaluate the eftfect of
any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and 10 communicate with
{hem all relationships and other matfers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable. related safeguards.

From the matiers communicated with those charged with governance, We determine
those malters thal were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our audilor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, inextremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matier
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected 1o outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order. 2020 (“the Order™), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (1 I)of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexurc A, a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the exient applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and helief were necessary for the purposes of ouraudit.

. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢. The Balance Sheel, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), and the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of
Change in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the
indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act.
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.
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Being a government company, provision of section 164(2) of the Act are not
applicable pursuant to the notification No. G.S.R.463(E) dated Sth June 2018,
issued by the Central Government of India,

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial contrals over financial
reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

_ Being a govermment company, provision of section 197 of the Act are not
applicable vide notification no. GSR 463 (E) dated Sth June 2015, issued by the
Central Government of India.

 With respect to the other matters 1o be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companics (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given (o us:
i The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have a
material impact on its financial position.

ii. Based on the assessment made by the Company, there are no material
foreseeable losses on long-term  contracts that may reguire any
provisioning. The Company did not have any derivative coniracts for
which there were any material foresceable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are aterial either individually or in the aggregale)
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other SOUrces or kind of funds) by the Company 1o
or in any other person ©f entity. including foreign entity
{“lntermediarics”}, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons ot eniities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

(b) The Management has represented, that, 10 the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been received by the Company from any person or enlity, including
foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly
ot indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guaraniee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
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(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considersd reasonable

and appropriate in the circumstances.
has caused us 0
(if) of Rule 11(e).

material misstatement.

nothing has come 10 Our notice
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and
as provided under ()

that

and (b) above. contain any

y. The Company has not declared or paid any final or interim dividend during

the period from 06th

January 2022 (Date of incorporation) and until the

date of this report, therefore, the reporting under clause is not applicable.

3. As required by Qection 143(3) of

the Act and as per directions issued by

Comptroller and Auditor General of India, we repott that:

g No | Directions

Auditor’s Replies

Whether the company has system in
place to process all the accounting
transactions through IT system? If yes.
the implications of processing of
gecounting  transactions outside IT
system on the Integrity of the accounts
along with the financial implications,
if any, may be stated.

Company is using SAP system to
process  all the  accounting
transactions. As pet the information
and explanation provided to us. no
accounting transactions have been
processed outside the IT System.

2 Whether there is any restructuring of
an existing loan oOr ©ases of
waiver/write off of debts/ |oans/interest
etc. made by a lender to the company
due to the company's inability to repay
the loan? If yes, the financial impact
may be stated. Whether such cases are
properly accounted for? (In case,
lender is a Government company, then
this direction is also applicable for
statutory auditor of lender company).

No. Company is having no case of
any restructuring of an existing
loan or cases of waiver/write off of
debts/loansfinterest etc. made by a
lender to the company due to the
company's inability to repay the
loan.

22




place: New Delhi
Date: 12-05-2023

Whether funds (grants/su

[ DO———
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bsidy etc.)

received/receivable  for specific explanation given 10 us and as per
schemes from Central/State | our examination of records,
Government or its agencies Were funds have been
properly accounted forfutilized as per receivedireceivable for any specific
its term and conditions? List the cases | scheme from Central/State
of deviation Government or its agencies during
the period from 06th January

71 st March 2023.

For Ahmad Shukla Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration NU:QOSS B3N
T

CA T-;nv-:er Ahmad

(Partner) !'-:f[; \
Membership No: 523922 R T

UDIN:ZBSEBQEZBGRMLRMZQQ

According to the information and

2022 (Date of incorporation)




ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requiremenis’®
section of our report to the Members of IRCON BHOJ MORBE EXPRESSWAY LI MITED of

even date)

Tao the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i (a) The Company does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE). intangible assets or
immovable property for the period from 06th January 2022 (Date of incorporation) 1o
11st March 2023, hence reporting under clause 3 (i) (a) to (e) of the order is not

applicable.

ii. (a) The Company has no inventories during the reporting period from 06th January 2022
(Date of incorporation) to 11st March 2023. Hence, reporting under clause 3 (ii) (a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits at any points of time
during the period from 06th January 2022 (Date of incorperation) to 3 1st March 2023,
hence reporting under clause 3 (ii) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

. The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security, granted any
loan or advances in the nature of loans, secured Of unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships, and any other parties, during the period from 06th January 2022 (Date

of incorporation) to 31st March 2023. Hence, reporting under Paragraph 3(iii) (), (b), (€),
(d), () and (f) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

iy,  The Company has not granted loan, made investment, and provided guarantee and security 10
which the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are attached. Hence,
reporting under Paragraph 3(iv) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

v.  The Company has not accepted any deposit or amou nte which are deemed to be deposits from the
public and therefore, the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of
section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provision of the Companies Act, 2013, and rules framed
there under, are not applicable. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not
applicable.

vi.  The Company is not required to mainfain cost records under section 148(1) of the Companics
Act, 2013,

i Inrespect of statutory dues:

(a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory

dues, including Goods and Services iax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax,
Cess and other material statutory dues applicable with the appropriate authorities. There
were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service {ax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, dutyof Custom, duty of
Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material stafutory dues in arrcars as at March
31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

24



Vil

i

K,

(b) According to the information and explanation given 10 US. and as per examination of
records of the Company, there is no amount payable in respeet of Goods and Services tax,
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of

Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess, which have not been deposited as on
March 31, 2023 on account of any disputes.

There were no transactions relating to previously anrecorded income that have been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the period from 06th January 2022 (Date of incorpeoration) Lo
115t March 2023 in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1061(43 of 1961).

(a) The Company does not have any loan or other borrowing during the period from 06th
Jaruary 2022 (Date of incorporation) 1o 31st March 2023, hence, reporting under clause
3 (ix) (a) of the Order is not applicable.

{(b) The Company does not have any loan or other borrowing during the period from 06th

January 2022 (Date of incarporation) to 31st March 2023, hence, reporting under clause
3 (ix) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

(¢) The Company does not have any loan or other borrowing during the period from (6th
January 2022 (Date of incorporation) to 315t March 2023, hence, reporting under clause
3 (ix) (c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) The Company has not raised any funds on short-term basis and hence, reporting under
clause 3 (ix) (d) of the Order is not applicable.

(¢) The Company does not have investment i1 subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during
the period from 06th January 2022 (Date of incorporation) to 31st March 2023 and hence,
reporting under clause 3 (ix) (e) of the Order is not applicable.

(f) The Company does not have investment in cubsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during
the period from 06th January 2022 (Date of incorporation) to 31st March 2023 and hence,
reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the period from 06th January 2022 (Date of
incorporation) to 31si March 2023 and hence reporting under clause 3(x) (a) of the Order

is not applicable.

(k) During the period from 06th January 2022 (Date of incorporation) to 31st March 2023, the
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully or partly ot optionally) and henee reporting under clause

3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) According 10 information and explanation given to us, n0 fraud by the Company and no
fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of audit.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in

Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014

with the Central Government, during the period from 06th January 2022 (Date of
incorporation) to 31st March 2023 and up to the date of this report.

(c) No whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the period from 06th
January 2022 (Date of incorporation) to 11st March 2023 (and up lo the date of this

report).
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The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) (2). (b) and (c) of
the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company does not require o
have an internal audit system as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence,
reporting under clause (xiv) (a) and (b} of the Order is not appl icable.

In our opinion during the period from 06th January 2022 (Date of incorporation) to 31st March
2023, the Company has not entered into any non-cash {ransactions with its Directors or persons
connected with its directors. and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013
are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1034, Hence, reporting under clause 3(vi) (a), (b), (€) and (d) of
the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the period from 06th January 2022 (Date of
incorporation) to 31st March 2023 covered by our audit and in the immediately preceding
financial period from 06th January 2022 (Date of incorporation) to 31st March 2023.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the period from
06th January 2022 (Date of incorporation) to 31st March 2023. Accordingly, clause 3(xviil) of
the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial asscts
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
atate that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantec nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The Company has not exceeded the limits prescribed under section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013 since its incorporation and hence, the Company is not required to transfer to 2 fund
specified in schedule VIl to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub
section (3) of section 133 of the said Act. Accordingly reporting under clause 3(xx) (a) and (b)
of the order is not applicable for the period from 06th January 2022 (Date of incorporation) to
31st March 2023.
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wi. The Company does not have investment in subsidiaries, associates or joint venturcs and
therefore, company has not prepared caonsolidated financial statements. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xxi) of the order is not applicable.

For Ahmad Shukla Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Ni’QUSSSBN

— 7y 1--’--:; ;

CA Tanveer Ahmad

(Partner)

Membership No: 523922

UDIN:ESSB‘JIZBGWLRQ%G =
Place: New Delhi &
Date: 12-03-2023
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Annexure B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on the Ind AS Financial
Statements of IRCON BHOJ MORBE EXPRESSWAY LIMITED for the period from 06th
January 2022 (Date of incorporation) to 31st March 2023

Report on the [nternal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IRCON BHOJ
MORBE EXPRESSWAY LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conj unction
with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the period from 06th
January 2022 (Date of incorporation) to 31st March 2023.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on, “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAD”. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 10
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is 10 express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing preseribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable fo an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and

maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respecis.

Our audit involves performing procedures to abtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial cantrols over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material wealkness
exsts, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or errot.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 2
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is @ process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with gencrally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company. (2)
provide reasonable assurance that {ransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Finaneial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
+o the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given (o US, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2023, “based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India™.

Tor Ahmad Shukla Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: ﬂﬂ%SEBN

e - N

¥
CA Tanveer Ahmad _
(Partner) { o= s
Membership No: 523922 (b=
UDIN:23523922BGRMLR9429 - A=2

Place: New Delhi
Date: 12-05-2023
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lrcon Bhoj Morbe Expressway Limited
ClIMN:= U45203DL2022G01392148
Balance Sheet as at 3ist March 2023

LAl camminnis so Sl Wepwes Dkl siless oilierwne stated)

Particelurs Nute As at 30t March, 2023
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Tofal Non-Current Assels i
Current dissels
il Financial Asers 1
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{in) |sims -
{1y Oiler Flrancial Asseis 42 22 Al
1 Curreid Tos Asscts {Ncn -
o b Ot Corent Assets .| A6t 1
Taral Current Assets 3.136.41
TOTAL ASSETS 303645
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Faquity
it Equrty Shore Copienl b 3.0
() Hher Eguiny 7 it |
Tonil Equiny 67738
Linhilities
Non-Carrent Linhilities
i Fmencw| Linbifines
{2} Listise Liabilities -
(&1 Trade Pavobles
- totn] outstanding dneg of nuers enterprices and aonll enterpises -
= 1oderl owtstanding dues of creditors othes thin aof oucro enterprses and small .
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Current Linbilithes
in) Fnacial Liabdiics
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(i) Cisher Fmaneml Linbdhiies B2 20034
(o) Oiber Carrent Lislihies a2 T 5
() Corrent Tax Linhilifics (el n
Total Corrent Liabilites 245007
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 313445
Summiary of significant sccounting policies 1 =
The sccompunying nates wre am Inlegral pert of the Bnancial stiensenty. 19033

As per onr repoar! of gven dale
For Ahmad Shakly Join & Assecinies

HCAL Firm Registration No, @ DISS83N
Chartered Acenantants

CA Tanvect Ahmad
Partner
1ICA] Membershup No. - 53139022

uow: 7 2677 7 ?ﬂfﬁﬂfﬁ-‘ﬁé# @'?

Plaee: New Delhi
Date: 12,05,2025
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Ircon Bhoj Morbe Expressway Limited
CIN:- U45203DL2022G 01392148

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period from 06th Janoary 2022 to 31si March 2023

(ALl amayets in Tndlian Rupees Laklis waless otherivize sialed)

For the period from O6rh January

Particulars Noe 2022 (Date of incorporation) to
3ist Mireh 2025
Toenme
Revenue from operations 11 2062 4]
Ciher moome =
Total Income (A) 2.662.41
Expenses
Project Expenses id 2584 90
Emploves haneiits expenses 13 2T
Finance Cosls i -
Depreciation und amorizmion expenses -
Other expenses 15 4973
Total expenses (B 266146
Profit/{ Loss) before tax (A-B) {iL05)
Tax expenses 3
Current jax an
Defemed tax | met) (004
047
Profit/| Loss) for the perind (0,12}
Dther comprehensive income{loss)
M) Items that wall non be reclassifed 1o profit or lo=s =
Income mx relating to Tems that will not be reclassified o profit or loss -
B lems that will be vechassilied 1o profic or Jois e
Income tox relating to Items that will be reclossified o profil or loss &
Other comprebensive income/| loss) for the period (net of tax) -
Total Comprehensive incomeloss) for the period (012
Earnings per equity share {Face Value Per Equity Share Ry, 10} 18
Basie (0.24}
Driluted (0.24)
Summary of significant pecounting policies |
The pecompanying notes ave an integral part of the fnancial statements. 21033

As per our report of even date

For Ahmad Shukla Jain & Associates
ICAD Firm Registration No. ; (5583
Chardered Accountants :

CaA Tanveer Ahmipd
Tariner
[CAl Membership Mo, . 523922

N 77 342 286K MLRGY2 4

Place: New Delhi
Date: 12.05.2023
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Ircon Bhoj Morbe Expressway Limited
CIN:- U45203DL2022G0O1392148

Cash Flow Statement for the period from 06th January 2022 1o 30st March 2023
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Ircon Bhoj Morbe Expressway Limited

CIN:- U45203DL2022GO1392148

Statement of changes in equity for the period from 06th January 2022 to 31st March 2023
(A eemonts in Indian Rupees Lakhs vnlerx otherwise siated)

() Equity Share Capital

Particulars

Amount

Balamee as at 11 April, 2021
Changes inequity share capital during the vear

Balance as al 6th January 2022

Changes in equity share capital during the vear

Balance as at 3 st March 2023

(h) Other Eguity

Particulirs Reserves & Surplus Other Deemed equity Tuotal
Comprehensive

Retained Earnings Income
Balunee as at 06th January 2022 - = 7 "
Total protit for the period (0.1 E - (0123
Other comprehensive income for the period - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the period (0.12) = - (0.12)
Addition in Deemed Equity - - 672,50 672,50
As al 3si March, 2023 (0.12) - 672,50 67238
Summary of significant aceounting policies 1

2to 33

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements,

As per our report ol even date
For Ahmad Shukla Jain & Asseciates
ICAL Firm Registration Mo, : 55838
Chartered Accountants &‘
- _..--'-"“ =i

3 D =
CA Tanveer Ahmad
Parlner
ICAl Membership No. : 523922

UpiN:2 4 £ 2 39722 L, ,{‘?‘%},éq

Place: New Delhi
Date: 12.05.2023
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Ircon Bhoj Morbe Expressway Limited
Notes to financial statements lor the period from 06 January (Date of incorporation) to March 31, 2023

1. Company Information and Significant Accounting Policies
A. Reporting Entity

Ircon Bhoj Morbe Expressway Limited (the “Company™) 1s domiciled and incorporated in India and is a
wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited (IRCON), public sector construction company
domiciled in India. The Company (CIN U45203DL2022GO1392 148) is incorporated under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable in [ndia.

The Company came into existence when IRCON was awarded the work of “Construction of Eight lane
access controlled expressway from KM 69.800 to KM 79.783 (Bhaj to Morbe Section- SPUR of Vadodara
Mumbai Expressway) in the State of Maharashtra on Hybrid Annuity Mode under Bharatmala Pariyojna
(Phase- Il — Package-XVII). In pursuant to the provisions of “Request for Proposal™, the selected bidder
“IRCON" has formed a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) named Ircon Bhoj Morbe Expressway Limited as
wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, incorporated on 06.01.2022. Accordingly, the Company has signed
the Concession Agreement with NHA T on 18" Feb’ 2022 for the project value amounting to Rs 1436 Crore.
The Concession period is 15 years from Commercial Operation Date (COD) and Construction period is
910 days from Appointed Date. The registered office of the company is located at C-4, District Centre,
Saket, New Delhi- 110017.

The presentation and functional currency of the company is Indian Rupees (INR). Figures in financial
statements are presented in lakhs, by rounding off up to two decimals except for per share data and as
otherwise stated.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the company's Board of Directors in their
meeting held on 12.05.2023.

B. Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division [l of
Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 111), as applicable to the financial
slalements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis following accrual system of
accounting. The Company has adopted the historical cost basis for assets and liabilities, except for the
following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

e Provisions, where the effect of time value of money is material are measured at present
value

o (ertain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

* Deflined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefits

C. Significant Accounting Policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are
as piven below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the
financial statements.
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Ireon Bhoj Morbe Expressway Limited
Notes to finaneial statements for the period from 06 January (Date of incorporation) lo March 31, 2023

Current vs non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification,
An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other assets as non-current,
A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be seftled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for atleast twelve months
after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Property, plant and equipment
2.1 Recognition and Initial Measurement

Property, plant and equipment is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of each item can be measured
reliably. Property, plant and equipment are initially stated at their cost,

Cost of asset includes

a) Purchase price, net of any trade discount and rebates

b)  Borrowing cost if capitalization criteria is met

c)  Costdirectly attributable to the acquisition of the assets which incurred in bringing asset
Lo its working condition for the intended use

d)  Incidental expenditure during the construction pericd is capitalized as part of the
indirect censtruction cost to the extent the expenditure is directly related to construction

or is incidental thereto.
e)  Present value of the estimated costs of dismantling & removing the items & restoring

the site on which it is located if recognition criteria are met.

Frechold land is carried at historical cost.




Ircon Bhoj Morbe Expressway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period from 06 January (Date of incorporation) to Mareh 31, 2023

2.2 Subsequent measurement

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and cost

of the expenditure can be measured reliably.

Cost of replacement, major inspection. repair of significant parts and borrowing costs for long-term

construction projects are capitalized if the recognition criteria are met.

The machinery spares are capitalized if recognition criteria are met,

2.3 Depreciation and useful lives

Depreciation on property. plant and equipment. excluding frechold land and leasehold land
acquired on perpetual lease is provided on straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the

assets as specified in schedule 11 of the Companies act, 2013.

However, in case of certain class of assets. the Company uses different useful life than those
preseribed in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013. The useful life has been assessed based on
technical evaluation, taking into account the nature of those classes of assets, the estimated usage
of the asset on the basis of the management’s best estimation of getting economic benefits from the
asset. The estimated useful life as per the technical evaluation viz-a-viz Schedule 1l of the

Companies Act, 2013 has been disclosed in the notes to accounts,

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from property, plant and equipment during the periad is

charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for use/disposed.

Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is depreciated separately if the cost of part
is significant in relation to the total cost of the item and useful life of that part is different from the

useful life of remaining asset. Leasehold land acquired on perpetual lease is not amortized.

Property plant and equipment acquired during the period, individually costing up to Rs. 5000/- are
fully depreciated, by keeping Re. | as token value for identification. However, Mobile phones

provided to employees are charged to statement of profit and loss irrespective of its value.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. “Ordinarily, the residual value of an asset is up to 5% of the

original cost of the asset™ as specified in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013.

2.4 Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derccognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit

and loss when the asset is derecognized.

3. Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of

an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of dispos
7 LAY Ao e e 18
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al-and its value in use.



Ircon Bhaoj Morbe Expressway Limited
Notes to linancial statements for the period from 06 January (Date of incorporation) to March 31, 2023

Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount and the impairment loss. including

impairment on inventories are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the

risks specific to the asset.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment 1s made at each reporting date to determine whether
there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have
decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable
amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount. nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined. net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior period. Such reversal is

recognized in the statement of profit and loss,

4. Revenue recognition

Service Concession Arrangements (Appendix D to Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with

Customers)

The Company constructs the infrastructure (road) used to provide a public service and operates and
maintains that infrastructure for a specified period of time. Under Appendix D to Ind AS 115 -
Revenue from Contracts with Customers, this arrangement is accounted for based on the nature of

consideration.

The Company recognise a financial asset to the extent that it has an unconditional contractual right
to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor (“NHAI") for the

construction services and Operation & Maintenance services.

The Company recognizes and measures revenue from construction and Operation & Maintenance

services in accordance with Ind AS -1135 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers™.

Company combine the two or more contracts entered into at or near the same time with the same
customer and account for the contracts as a single contract if contracts are negotiated as a package
with a single commercial objective or amount of consideration to be paid in one contract depends
on the price or performance of the other contract or goods or services promised in the contracts are

single performance obligation.

Transaction price (it does not involve significant financing component) is the price which is
contractually agreed with the customer for provision of services. Revenue is measured at the
transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation and it excludes amounts collected

on behalf of third partics i.e. GST and is adjusted for variable considerations.




Ircon Bhoj Morbe Expressway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period from 06 January (Date of incorporation) to Mareh 31, 2023

The nature of Company’s contract gives rise to several types of variable consideration including
escalation and liquidated damages. The Company recognizes revenue for variable consideration
when it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount cumulative revenue recognized will not
occur. The company estimates the amount of revenue to be recognized on variable consideration

using most likely amount method.

Any subsequent change in the transaction price is then allocated to the performance obligations in

the contract on the same basis as at contract inception.

Consequently, amounts allocated to a satisfied performance obligation are recognized as revenue,

or as a reduction of revenue, in the period in which the transaction price changes.

The company satisfies a performance obligation and recognizes the revenue over time, if any of the

following criteria is met:

a) The customer simultancously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s

performance as the entity perform.

b) The entity's performance creates or enhances an asset (for example, work in progress) that the

customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced or

¢) The entity’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the entity and the

entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligation satisfied over time, the revenue recognition is done by measuring the
progress, using percentage completion method, towards complete satisfaction of performance
obligation. The progress is measured in terms of a proportion of actual cost incurred to-date, to the
total estimated cost attributable to the performance obligation. However. where the Company is not
be able to reasonably measure the outcome of a performance obligation. but the Company expects
to recover the costs incurred in satisfying the performance obligation, the Company recognize
revenue only to the extent of the costs incurred until such time that it can reasonably measure the
outcome of the performance obligation. A cumulative catch-up adjustment would be recognized in

the period in which the entity is able to reasonably measure its progress.

Performance obligation is measured by applying input method. [n the contracts where performance
obligation cannot be measured by input method, the output method is applied. which faithfully
depict the Company’s performance towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation.

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either

to the contract Scope or contract price_

The accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether the services added to the
existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is at the standalone selling price. Services
added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative cateh up basis, while those that are
distinct are accounted for prospectively. either as a separate contract, if additional services are
priced at the standalone selling price, or as a termination of existing contract and creation of a new

contract if not priced at the standalone selling price.

4.1 Contract balances

* Contract assets: A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for poods or
services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or
services o a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a

contract asset is recognized for the eamed consideration that is conditional.




Ireon Bhoj Morbe Expressway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period from 06 January (Date of incorporation) to March 31, 2023

e Trade receivables: A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of
consideration that is unconditional (i.e.. only the passage of time is required before payment

of the consideration is due),

= Contract liabilities A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Company has received consideration (eran amount of consideration
is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers
goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is
made, or the payvment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as

revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

4.2 Other income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.
Interest income is recognized using Effective Interest rate method.

e Miscellaneous income is recognized when performance obligation is satisfied and right to

receive the income is established as per terms of contract.

5. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready for its intended use or
sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to statement
of profit and loss as incurred. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent

regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.
6. Taxes

6.1 Current income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current tax is
determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period and is computed in
accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current income tax is recognized in statement of profit
and loss except to the extent it relates to items recognized outside profit or loss in which case it is
recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax
items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to sifuations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where

appropriate.

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

6.2 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting

date.
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Ireon Bhoj Morbe Expressway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period from 06 January (Date of incorporation) to March 31, 2023

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items
recognized outside profit or loss, in which case is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewad at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and habilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority,

Foreign Currencies

7.1 Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency™). The financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupees which is also the functional and presentation currency of the Company.

7.2 Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying the exchange
rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the reporting date are converted to functional
currency using the closing rate (Closing selling rates for liabilities and closing buying rate for
assets). Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost
are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transactions.

Exchange differences arising on settlement of monetary items, or restatement as at reporting date,
at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement
of profit and loss in the period in which they arise. These exchange differences are presented in the
statement of profit and loss on net basis.

Employee benefit

8.1 Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits such as salaries, short term compensated absences, and Performance Related
Pay (PRP) falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits and undiscounted amount of such benefits are expensed in the
statement of profit and loss in in the period in which the employee renders the related services.
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8.2 Post-employment benefits

The Post-employment benefits & other long term Employee Benefits are considered as per the
guidelines of Ircon International Limited, the Holding Company, for the employees on the
deputation from the Holding Company. And there is no post-employment benefits to the

contractual employees.

9. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent include cash on hand, cash at banks and short-term deposits with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which

are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of unrestricted
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above as they are considered an integral part of the

Company’s cash management.

10. Dividend

Dividends and interim dividends payable to the Company’s shareholders are recognized as changes
in equity in the period in which they are approved by the shareholders and the Board of Directors

respectively.

11. Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

11.1 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, considering the risk and

uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,

the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Provisions recognized by the Company include provisions for Maintenance, Legal Cases,

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), Onerous Contracts and others.

11.2 Onerous contracts

An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (i.e.. the costs that the
Company cannot avoid because it has the contract) of meeting the obligations under the contract
exceed the economic benefits expected (o be received under it. The unavoidable costs under a
contract refiect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the cost of
fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it. If the Company has a
contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognized and measured as a
provision, However, before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the
Company recognizes any impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract.

These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and, adjusted to reflect the current best

estimates,
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12.

11.3 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or present obligations that
may but probably will not, require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the
amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is possible obligation or a
present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is remole, no provision or disclosure is made. :

These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

11.4 Contingent asscts

Contingent asscts are not recognized though are disclosed. where an inflow of economic benefits
is probable,

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for
consideration.

12.1 Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

12.1.1 Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost. less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of |zase
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilitics recognized, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the lease term and the estimated vsefill lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life
of the asset.

The right-of-use assels are also subject to impairment.

12.1.2 Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease pavments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value puarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain 1o be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease. if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized & c’xpﬁnéﬂs {unless they are

T G
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incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the

payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the

underlying asset.
The Company's lease liabilities are included in financial liabilities

12.1.3 Short term lease and leases of low value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases contracts
including lease of residential premises and offices (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies
the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are
considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are

recognized as expense on 4 straight-line basis over the lease term.

12.2 Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to

ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on

a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on
the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which

they are earned.

13. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial

liability or equity instrument of another entity.

13.1 Financial assets

13.1.1 Initial recognition and measurement

All Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus or minus transaction cost that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss). Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in

statement of profit and loss.

13.1.2 Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
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13.1.2.1 Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
g

a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amartised cost
using the cffective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising
from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade
and other receivables.

13.1.2.2 Debt instruments at FVTOCI

A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as wel] as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses &
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss, On derecognition
of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity
to statement of profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is
reported as interest income in statement of profit and loss using the EIR method.

13.1.2.3 Debt instruments at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL,

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

13.1.2.4 Equity instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company
may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes
in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCL then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recyeling
of the amounts from OCI to stalement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However.
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or lass within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at faur value with all
changes recognized in the Statement of profit and loss. -
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13.2 Impairment of financial assets

Expected Credit Loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive

(i.e., all cash shortfalls). discounted at the original EIR.

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit

risk exposure:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g.. loans, debt

securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance
b. Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOC]
¢. Lease receivables under Ind AS 116

d. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result

from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115
¢. Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL
f. Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows “simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment |oss allowance on:

s Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
» All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLS at each reporting date,

right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entily reverls to recognizing

impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credii losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial asset, The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results

from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head other expenses’
in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments

is described below:

e Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease
receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, 1.e., as an integral part of the measurement of
those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset
meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross

carrying amount.

¢ Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the

balance sheet, i.e. as a liability.

* Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: For debt instruments measured at FVOCI, the expected
credit losses do not reduce the carrying amount in the balance sheet, which remains at fair value.
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Instead. an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if the asset was measured at
amortized cost is recognized in other comprehensive income as the ‘accumulated impairment
amount”

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial
assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ crigination.

13.3 Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expires or it transfers the lnancial assets and substantially all risks and rewards of the
ownership of the asset.

The difference between the carrying amount and the amount of consideration received /
receivable is recognized in the statement of profit and loss,

13.4 Financial liabilities

13.4.1 Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings other
financial liabilities etc.

13.4.2 Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

13.4.2.1 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
The company has not designated any financial liabilities at FVTPL.

13.4.2.2 Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Loans, borrowings, trade pavables and other financial liabiliies

After initial recognition, Loans, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are
subsegquently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains
and losses are recognized in statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recognized as
well as through the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) amortization process. Amortised cost is
caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement
of profit and loss.

13.4.3 Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
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13.4.4 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment
to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make
a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured
at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind

AS 109 and the amount recognized less cumulative amortization.

13.4.5 Reclassification of linancial assets

The Company determines classification of [inancial assets and liabilities on initial recognition.
After iitial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity
instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments,
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.
Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. Such changes are evident to
external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or
ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies
financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which
is the first day of the immediately next reporting period f'nlluwmg the change in business model.
The Company does not restate any previously recognized gains, losses (including impairment

gains or losses) or interest.

13.4.6 Offsetting of linancial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable contractual legal right to offset the recognized amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.

14. Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair

measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability

takes place either:

e [n the principal market for the asset or liability, or

e [n the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their

economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability

to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another

market participant that would use the assel in its highest and best use.

The Cumpan} uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the eircumstances and for which
sufficient data are available o measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant obwwable inputs

and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
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15.

16.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole;

e lLevel | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

e |evel 2— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities, if any. At each
reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Above is the summary of accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes.

Non — current asset held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying
amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly
probable. The sale is considered highly probable only when the asset or disposal group is available
for immediate sale in its present condition, it is unlikely that the sale will be withdrawn, and sale is
expected within one year from the date of the classification. Disposal groups classified as held for
sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Property. plant and
equipment. investment property and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortized once
classified as held for sale. Assets classified as held for sale/distribution are presented separately in
the balance sheet.

If the criteria stated by IND AS 105 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale™ are no longer met, the
disposal group ceases to be classified as held for sale. Non-current asset that ceases to be classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of (i) its carrying amount before the asset was classified
as held for sale, adjusted for depreciation that would have been recognized had that asset not been
classified as held for sale, and (ii) its recoverable amount at the date when the disposal group ceases
to be classified as held for sale. The depreciation reversal adjustment related property, plant and
equipment, investment property and intangible assets is charged to statement of profit and loss in
the period when non-current assets held for sale criteria are no longer met.

Material prior period errors

Errors/omissions discovered in the current year relating to prior periods are treated as immaterial
and adjusted during the current year. if all such errors and omissions in aggregate does not exceed
0.50% of total operating revenue as per last audited financial statement of the Company.
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17. Operating Segment

Operating segments are reported in the manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM is responsible for allocating resources

and accessing performance of the operating segment of the company.

18. Earnings Per Share

In determining basic earnings per share, the company considers the net profit attributable to equity
sharcholders. The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period. In determining diluted earnings per share,
the net profit attributable to equity shareholders and weighted average number of shares outstanding

during the period are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential equity shares.

19. Significant accounting estimates and judgments

The estimates used in the preparation of the said financial statements are continuously evaluated
by the Company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors
{(including expectations of future events), that the Company believes to be reasonable under the
existing circumstances. The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the
reporting date, or thal occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions
existing as at the reporting date. Although the Company regularly assesses these estimates, actual
results could differ materially from these estimates - even if the assumptions underlyving such
estimates were reasonable when made, if these results differ from historical experience or other
assumptions do not turn out to be substantially accurate. The changes in estimates are recognized

in the financial statements in the period in which they become known.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. Actual results could

differ from these estimates.

19.1 Allowances for uncollected trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amount are based on ageing of the receivable’s
balances and historical experiences. Individual trade receivables are written off when management

deems not be collectible.

19.1 Contingencies

In the normal course of business. contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims
against the Company. There are certain obligations which managements have concluded based on
all available facts and circumstances are not probable of payment or difficult to quantify reliably
and such obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in notes. Although there can
be no assurance of the final outcome of legal proceedings in which the Company is involved. it is

not expected that such contingencies will have material effect on its financial position.

19.4 Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provision for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment caleulation., based on the Company’s past history, existing market

conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
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19.5 Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax
laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the nature of business differences
arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions,
could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Company
establishes provisions. based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such provisions is based on
various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax
regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation
may arise on a wide varicty of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective

domicile of the companies.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

19.6 Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use,
The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales
transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model.

19.7 Non-current asset held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying
amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly
probable. The sale is considered highly probable only when the asset or disposal group is available
for immediate sale in its present condition, it is unlikely that the sale will be withdrawn, and sale is

expected within one vear from the date of the classification.

19.8 Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease. therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that
the Company would have 1o pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic

environment.

19.9 Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination eptions —

Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any
periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company
applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the
option to renew or terminate the lease. That is. it considers all relevant factors that create an
economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement
date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option
to renew or to terminate (e.g.. construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant

customization to the leased asset).
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19.10 Revenue recognition

The Company’s revenue recognition policy, is central to how the Company values the work it has
carricd out in cach financial year.

These policies require forecasts to be made of the outcomes of Contracts, which require,
assessments and judgements to be made on changes in scope of work and claims and variations.

The Company has incorporated significant judgements over contractual entitlements. The range of’
potential outcomes could result in a materially positive or negative change to underlying
profitability and cash flow.

Estimates are also required with respect to the below mentioned aspects of the contract ;

Determination of stage of completion

Estimation of project completion date

Provisions for foreseeable loses

Estimated total revenues and estimated total costs to completion, including claims and
variations.

These are reviews at each reporting date and adjust to reflect the current best estimates

Revenue and costs in respect of contracts are recognized by reference to the stage of completion of
the contract activity at the end of reporting period. measured based on proportion of contract costs
incurred for work performed to the date relative to the estimated total contract costs, where this
would not be representative of stage of completion. Variations in contract work and claims are
included to the extent that amount can be measured reliably. and receipt is considered probable.
When it is probable that contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognized as an expense immediately.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Pariiculars Assels Total

As at 06th Janunary 2022 - -
Additions - =
Disposals/Adjustments - e
Transfer to Asset held for sale - =
Exchange Gain/ Loss - =

As at 31st March 2023 - -

As at l6th January 2022 - -
Depreciation charge for the period - =
Impairment - =
Disposals/Adjustments - -
Transfer to Asset held for sale - -
Exchange Gain/ Loss i =

As at 31st March 2023 - -

Net book yvalue
As at 31st March 2023 - =

During the period 06the January 2022 to 31st March 2023, the Company does not have any Property,
Plant and Equipment.
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Notes to financial statements for the period from 06th January 2022 to 31st March 2023
W emonmis in dndian Ropecs Lakhs waless otherwire siaied)

3 Deferred Tax Assets (Met) and Tax expense

A The major compancnls of income fax cxpense for the period il Jannary 2022 to 31st March 2023 are: -

Particulars

For the period
Trom Boih Januwary
2022 (Date of
incorporation) to
Jlst March 2023

Current mcone lax

Current income iy chare a1
Deferved tan

Relating o origination and réversil of wemporary differences (00
Income tax expense reported in the statement of Profit and Loss 0.7

B) The veconciliation of tix cxpense dnid the acconnting pro (it multiplicd by India™ domestic tax rate for the period O6th Jannary 2022 to 315t Mareh 2023

ar
For the period
fram D6th Jumeiry
Particnlars 2022 {Date of

imcorporation to
315t March 2023

1 ProftviLoss) before lax (0.03)
2 Corporite f4% mile as per Income tas: Act, 1961 2517%
3 Tax on accounting profi -

4, Effect of tax adjustments

(1) Tax on expinses,

()} Pre-incorporation expenses 1l
(&) Pemalty For late pavment of stalutory dues =
|inp Drefarred oy expenses /| inconmme) 004y
Total effect of tax adjustments 007
5, Income iy expense reparted in the statement of profit and loss [3+4) 7
6. Effective tax rate 6= 5/1 0.0
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Notes to financial statements far the period from 0600 Fanuary 2022 1o 315t Mareh 2023
(AN aniownty i fadicn Reprees Lakls andess otherwize séaled)

Ch Component of deferred tux assets aod (labilities) o Bubince Sheet and Statement of Profil and Losy

Statements of

Balance Sheel

Partieunlary
Profil sod Loss
31-Mur-23 31-Mur-23
Presineorpision expense (0,04 ) 004
Deeprectation = x
Carmy forward logges =
Net deferred tax Assetsd Linhilities) (0.0 04
) Deferred tax assets reflected in Balance Sheet:
Partleulars Asat 3ist
March, 2023
Deferred mx assets 0.04
Dreferred fax loblies -
Deferred Tox Assetsd Linbilithes) (Net) .04
E) Reconcilintion ol deferred tax (linhilities )/nssets:
Asat 31.03.2023
Particukirs Recognised in | Recognised in 001 Balance
Statement of As at 31st March
Frofhit and Loss 2023 [MNet)
Pre-incorporation @5pense 0,04 L0
Difference in Book depreciatian and
Income tax depreciation a = %
Corry forward losses : = =
.04 - 0.04

Mel deferred las Assietsi Liabilities)
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Notes to financial statements for the period from 06th January 2022 to 31st March 2023
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4

4.1

4.2

Current Assets - Financial Asseis

Current Financial Assets - Cash and Cash Equivalents

Paitikil As at Jl1st
MERm, March, 2023
Balances with banks:
Earmarked Funds
- On current accounts 4.86
- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months -
Total 4.80
Current Assets - Other Financial Assets
Particul As at 31st
ARRERIaIR March, 2023
(Unsecured and considered good)
Security Deposit -
Coniraci Assets:
Conrract Assets under SCA 2,662.41
Total 2.662.41
Dther Current Assets
Particulars Agutalu
March, 2023
(Unsecured and considered good)
Advances Recoverable from
-Gnods & Services Tax (GST) 468.56
Adwvances to confractors -
Prepaid Expenses 0.58
Total 469.14
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Notes to financial statements for the period from 06th Janwary 2022 to 315t March 2023
{All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

16 Disclosure as per Ind AS 21 ' The Effeets of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates'
['he amount of exchange dilferences (nel) creditedfdebited 1o the siolement of prolil and loss is Nil.

17 Relsted Party Diselosures
Disclosores in compliance with Ind AS 24 "Related Pariy Disclosures” are as under:

a)

(i)

(i)

h)

c)

dj
(i
fii)

List of Related Parties

Holding company

Ireon International Limited

Key Management Fersonnel (KMVT)
Nan Executive Directors

Name

Dresignation

Shri Ashok Kumar Goyal (w.e.l 06t January, 2022 to 10th October. 2022)
Shri Parag Verma (w.e. [ 06th January, 2022 to 10th October. 2022}

Shrt Masood Ahmad (w.e .l 06th January, 20223

Shri B. Mugunthan (w.e. T, O6th January, 2022}

Shri Devendrn Kumar Sharma (w10t Oetober 2022)
Shri Manoj Kumar (w.e.f. 14th Ociober 2022)

Director from lreon
Director from Ircon
Director from frcon
Director from lrcon
Drirector rom Ircon
Director [rom Ircon

Remuneration to Key Management Personnel: Company had Parl-time and Non Executive Direetors during the period frem 06th
January 2022 16 3151 March 2023, nominated on the Board by the Holding Company. do not draw ooy remunerution from the Company. Mo

sitting fee 13 paid 10 Part- time and Non Executive Directors,

Transactions with other related parties are as follows:

For the period from
061h January 2022

MNature of transaction Mame of related party i u_f {Date of
relationship 4 i
incorporation) to
31st March 2023
17 Reimbursenent expenses 6,33
) Rent Expense (inelusive of GET) 3.51
3 Investment i Eguily Shares [teon Inlemational Holding Company 5.00
4) Warks Coniract Limited e 258499
672,50

3] Receipt of Quasi/Deemed Equity (Intercst free loan)

Ouistanding balances with the related parties are as follows:

Nature of transaction Mame of related party Nature of As at 31st March,
relativnship 23
Balance Pavable as on reporting date Ireon International - 135828
— = - = - o Holdng Company
Equity Share Capiial (Ineluding Deemad cquiy) Limited g 677.30

Terms and conditions of transuctions with related parties

Transactions with refated partics are made on terms equivalent 1o those thal prevail inarm’s length ransactions.
Ouistanding balances ol related parties at the reporting date are unsecured and settlémen! occurs through banking transuctions. These

balances are interesi ree.
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Motes to financial statements for the period from 06th January 2022 to 31st March 2023
(Al amounts 1 Indian Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

18 Earnings per share (EPS)

Disclosure as per Ind AS 33 'Earnings per share’

(n) Basic EPS is caleulaied by dividing the prafii or the vear atlributable to equily holders by the weighted averape number of eguity shares
outstandmg during the period.

(b Diluted EPS is enleudated hy dividing the profit For the period atiributable to the equity holders ofier considering the effect of dilution by
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period plus the weighied average number of equity shares that would be issued
onconversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

(i}

i)

{iii)

Basie and diluted carnings per share (in Hs.)

Particulars Note For the period from
061h January 2022
(Date of
incorporation) o
31st March 2023
Profil atiributable to Equity holders (Rs. in lakhs) (i) (0.12)
Nowol equilty shares 30.000.00
Weighted average number of cquity shares lor Bazic and Diluted EPS (In Numbers) (i) 50.000.00
LEamings per share {Basic) {0.24)
Eomings per share (Diluted) (0.24)
Face value per share 10.00

Profit attributable to equity shareholders (used as numerator) (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulirs

For the period from
O6th January 2022
(Date of
incorporation) to
3151t March 2023

Frafit for the vear a3 per Statement of Profit and Loss
Prafit attributable 1o Equity holders of the company used for computing EPS

(0L12)
(0L12)

Weighted average number of equity shares (usced as denominator) (Nos.)

Particulars

For the period from
0Gth January 2022
(Date of
incorporation) to
Fst Mareh 2023

Opening balance ol issued equity shares

Equity shares issued during the period

Weighted average number of cquity shares for computing Basic EPS

Dilution Effect:

Adid: Weighted avernge numbers of potential equity shares outstanding during the veur
Weighted average number of equity shares for computing Diluted EPS

S0 0.0
50.000.00

30.000.00

Nate: Weighted avernge number of equity shares is the number of shares outstanding from the dale of incorporation adjusted by the
number of equity shares issued during the period multiplied by the time weighting facior. The time weighting factor is the number of days

for which the specific shares are ouistanding as proportion of total number of days during the period,
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Sodes to fnanciol statements for the periad from 061h Janmary 2022 1w 315t March 2023
LA ity 10 ndian Rugees Lakhs ioless othe m ise siated)

17 Inagkemient of Assets
Crimitng the periad. Company bins eaimed out assessment an impoicment of individioal asses by working ont the recovemble amonnt besed on lower of the net nedlizable wlue and
canrying cost m terms ol Id A% 36, “lmginent of Asseis” nolified under section 133 ef the companies Act, 2003 repd wiih Rule 3 of the Companies idian Acbennting St 3
Fombes, 20055 sl Com pagies {ndezs acoumsting sogdasds ) Amendioent Rodes 2006, Agcordisgly, inpairment foss ol Mil ks een provided o

0 Provision, Comtingencies and Commiiments

{a]

L]

ie)

1k}

Provisiums

Ma provisions provided during the year gs per bl AS 37 Provsions, Contingent Liabifiies and Costimgent Assers!

Contingent liabilities

No.Chinm s against the Company acknowhedacd as debis o on the reportine date as per Ind AS 37 Provigkans, Contingent Labdities and Contingent Agsets!

Contingent nsseis
Mo elaiines wn favous of the company' accoimied s recelvables as on the reponing dide as per Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabalitie: and Comingenl Assos'

Commitments

Estimated amoting of contrcts remaining o be execuited an capital ncomit (Net of ndvance | and not provided for is 3l Cther Commiiments as on 2s8 AMarcl’ 2025 11 fs
1,29, 750,83 Lakhs,

21 Segenend Heporting

1]

]

{ii#)

Gieneral Infoimation

Operating sepmentz are defined 05 componens of an enlerpase for which discrete Inaneml mformation s avallable which is being svalnated requlariv by the Chiel Operafing.
Dcrston Maker (CODN) in deesding how o allacaite resources and dsessme perfsnninee. The Bodrd of Directors of the Company 15 the Chicf Operating Decsion Maker
(CODMI. The Company i engaped in the bosiness of infrastrocture developowent in e state of S arshis and the Chiel Opering Decision Maker { CORM) mopdtors the
opcrating results of te buswess as 8 single seament, henoe no segrie seement needs 1o be disclosed i accurdance with the vequiremenls of Ind AS 108

Informafion aboui gengraphical infurmation

As the Company operates in @ single peoprapluce] seguent | & lndia, henoe no'sepamie peowraplucal semment 15 disclozed,

Informzition abowt major eusiomer

During e veay ended Muerch 3lst 2023, Revenue of s, 266241 Lakbs ane denved from @ single customer e NHAT wlich s move than 10% of the Company’s 1o1a] revenue.

22 Financial Risk Manage ment
Thee Company” s principel fnoneial lnbilites compiise nade payables and oflier pyalides The main puposs of tese Aoomeind lebiliies is o Buee e Company's ojeranons, T
Compagy s principal finapeml asses include receivables wd eash and shor-lerm deposns, The Company iy exposed o the followin g risks fom its wse of linancial mstwments; Credit
vsk, Liguadity resk ad Market sisk. Thes pote preseats infomantion abont the Cosiporn s exposire 10 cach of the alove ngks, the Compary s olijectives, palicies and processes. for
mensuring nnd managing risk

Hisk Management Framewark
The Company's aetivities make it susceptible to various risks The Company hoz taken adequate measwes 1 addvess such coneerns by developing adeqnaie systems ond peactices The
Baziadd of Tivectors has averall vesponsibiline for the @aablislimest anid oversight of the Company’s risk mmmagemen Tamewerk

0]

Credin Risk

Credit risk is the nisk ol financil [oss 10 the Company if @ cuskomir or countersiy 1ooa [wmneial istrment s to mect its contraciual oblizatons resulting m a fizancial [oss
to the Company. Credif nisk anses paneipally from imde recenvables, cash and ensh equivalents with banks and other linancial essets The Company's exposige and credil malnas
ofity connterpariies are contmaoushy moniiored by (e omiagement

Cash anil cash equivalents

Thee Company beld ensh and cash cquivilents of Be 86 Iakls The cash amd cash equividents are held in pulbihie secion banks with seovg enedin eatings.

Oiher finnncinl assets

The Com pens's exposare (0 credil risk is infleenced mainly by he characteristics of the ensiomer The demowraphies af 1he customer, including the defouli vizk of the indnstry
and oty i which the cusiomer oparries. dlso s an mOmence on credit ish aseessment. The Company derives revenue proma by fom (e Construction of Expressway 2ud
uther financial assels priomanly rebles o the unbithed revene under Service Corcésdon Armageement (5CA) The credit sk ansing from these trsde recevablesand onlbilled
revenbe k& homited Because 1he connferpmty = Natlonal Highwivs Awtharity of [ndia (NHATL a0 sifonamoss agency of Govemmen! of Indin. with cipacity to meet the
oblgarions and therefore, the risk o defmb s very neghigible or Nil

Esposiiie 1 erwbit visk [R4 In Lokl
Particulurs 31-Mar-23|
Financial Assets fur which aflwwunce is measured using life-time expected eredit loss as per simplified approach

Cosh o Cash Egauvilents 456
Financial Asscis for which albowance is measured wsing life-time expected credit loss as per Simplified Approach

Trade Iteezd vable -
Unbilled veveiLiz 265241
Tatal 266727 |
Summary of change in lass allowanecs measored wsing Simplificd approuch {Rs. In Lakhs)
Parthculars J1=Mar-23
Opening Allowamies -
Imipairment, fogg rocoprised durmg the periad a
Amomnt wrimen=01T during e period -
Clasing Allowances -

Dinring the vear, the Compiny s recopmsad lass allowance of Kil

Summaury of change in beez allvwonces measured using Lifetime Expecred Crofit Lasees (LECL) approach (Rs. In Lokhsj
Particelsrs ks = Xi-Mar-23

Opening Allowances
Impminment osa recoenized during the perod
Amoumt wrinten-of T during 1he period

Closing Alluwances

Mhating e veor the Compony has recognised Inss allownonce of Xi
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Mofes bo Binoncial statements for the peciod From 06th Fanuary 2022 1o 30st Mareh 2023
FALL aatgnants iy Mcsom Bupees Lakhe unlass ellerwise dlated)

]

Litpaidiiy risk

Liguinetily tisk 15 e ok hiit e Company will cncoonter diTiculty momechng the oblagations assocuted with its financiol babilites that nre scitlod by delivermy cosh or another
Hnancial asset. The Compony s approach to managing Houldin 65 to enseee, 24 g os pessibie, that iwill have sufficient Houidite roomeet itg Bobiliges when ey are due. under
both sormal and stressed conditions, withou incurming uileceplable losses or nsking damage to the Company’s repomtion. Liquidiy posiion of the Company s reviewed on a

vegnlar hosi= by e Board of Direciors and approjinite decisions are ks acconding to e sduaton.

The table bedow provides detals regarding the spnficant Goancial liabditics as at 31 March 2023 {Hs In Lakhs)
Particulars Asat 31 March 2023
Less than 1 Yesr 1-2 Years 2 yeurs anid
nhove
Trbe Foyables L1919 - -
Other Fisaneial Liabiliteeg 204034 5 -

eb Market risk

Market risk 35 the nsk that the fair valiee of fitore cash fows of a Moancial instmaverts will foctimte beetnse of changes i market prices Market risk comprises Forign
cumency risk ond Inerest rate risk The objective ofmierket Ak manogement 35 10 manage ssd contiol market risk exposanes within acceptalble parameters, while optimising (e
retum, Tie Boand of Diveciors i5 responsible o sating up ol polivies and grocedyees oomomee mashel sk of e Company.

(i) Currency risk

The Company aperates im Imbia only ond ihe functional corrency ol the Company 8§ also Indian Rupees: The Company has ao wensection in carmency veher than functoual

currency amd tlierefone, the Company is not expesed o loresgn curmency sk
fil) Interest cote risk

Imterest mie risk is Qv sk that the i valoe or the foture casli Oows of o financial mstroment will octuste becnose of changes i mndket interest mtes AL the reportimg date,

the Compony has no miercst-bieannge financial insirments.

23 Fuir Value Memorements
a)  Finnncinl imstrumenis by catlegory

Particulars As at 315t March, 2023
F¥TPL FVTOCT Amortised Cost
Financial Assels o1 Amortized Cost
(i) Cash onct cash eguivalens - - 4 RA
Gy Oy’ correml Posneisl sssers - - 2466241
= - 2,667.27
Financiol Linbilities ot Amorticed Cost
{1} Tratke Payahles 4 = 2.171,19
{1y Ol fmincial lakbilines - - 204,39
= = 737453

B Falr value hiernechy

Futanual assets and financial labililes are measuced al Fidg value iy Iiess fiancinl stateinerits ond are grauped ito hiee levels of a fare value hierpechy, The twee Levels are

defimed based on the observability of significant gt 1o the mensuremen |, as follows
Level 12 Quoted priees {unadjusted) i aetive markets for identical assers or linhilities

Lisval 2 Imputs ather than quated prices included within Leved | thil ane abseriable for the asset or labidity, sither dircoily of mdinectly

Lewvel 37 Unobseneahle inputs (o the nsset or Hobility

¢ Carrving value and Fair value of finsnciifl assets and llibities as ot 3150 March 2013

Particulars Carrying Viloe Fuir Value
Level-1 Level-2 Level-3
Fampmeial A gsetd at Amortiecd Cost
(#) € sl nnd vash eqmivalenis + &b - - R 1]
{11 ) Other cornenl financind osscis 1662.4] = - R R ]
1667.27 - - 1,667.27
Fimamcial Liabilities at Amorticedl Cost
(n) Trade Payabiles 217919 . - 2179100
(i) Other fismcial labalitees 204134 - - 200 34
1,379.53 - - 1,179.43

e managemenl assessed 1 Fair value of cash omd cash equivalents, tade paveblcs, and other carreat financial assets | habilitics approximate their carrving amoocts [nroely
due 9o the short-ferm maturi|ies of these imstruments. The fair valoe of 1he fnaneis! ossets and linbiities 19 ineluded ar the amont a1 which the insinment coild be eschanzed in

2 cumen tmnetction between willio e partics

24 Capital Manngement

The Compamy's obhjective 1o manape ik capital m oo manier (o ensun oo sofien al hae abilite (o contime i o moing conesa oo thal the Company can continue (o provide maimumn
petimns o shoreholders gl benefli o viher Aabeholders and also 0 malnion ab appropriste capiial sirocture of debl and equity. The cupiial siructure of the company 15 based on
mianigement’ s udgement ofils strabegac and day-to-tay reeds with 0 Focus on total equity 5o a5 o mamian investor, crediers and murket confidence. The managsment and the Boand
ol Directors menitor thie retrm on eapital. The Company may ke appropsiaie sieps in order fo mamiain, or i necessany adust, its copital structire.

Further. the Company manages its capita | structure 1o make adjustmes i Light of ckanges in cconomic conditions andd the e

quarements of Lhe financial covenants,
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Notes ta noncial stdemcnts for the poried Trom B6th Jonoery 2022 te 3158 March 2023
LA oy b bacling Rapees Lokhs wnless olhémwise stited)

25 Revenue
A Dsappregation of Reyeaie
Haviog repard fo the nstune of contract with custoner, tiere 15 only one fype ol gotepory of revenue

For the period from 06th January 2023 {Dade ol incorporidion) e 31si March 1023

Tyiieol Produt or Revenue s per Ind AS 115 Method For miepswriog performance obligation Totul & per
iy Other Revenue
Services Stodement of
Input Method Output Method EYORT AL et
Highw iy 2.0662.4] 166341 . - 2466241
Toial L662.41 146241 . - 266141

The revenue of s 266241 Lokhs is recopnised over npeniod of time

B, Coatract Iutlsnces

Farticulars Asat 3]st
Muorch, 2023

(Conlract Assers (Mote 4.3) 260241

Coinlract Habliny +

11 Conimet Assets are recogi sed over the peniod m wihich services are pérfonned bo represen] the Company's night jo consideration i exehange for goods oF serviees iransfered Lo
e custonrer. I mcludes balances due from custoners under constiction contracts tat arse when e Company receives payments from cpstomers 85 per ferms of e confrocts
hawever the revenie i5 recommised ever the pened under mput methad. Ay amonnn peevioushy recogmised ns a contract asset is rechnssifed to trade receivables on satisfaciion of
the conditin attachied 4. fnire service wineh is necesary toachieve the Billing malesioe

Movement i contract balances during (he perind

Particalars Asoak 35t
Morch, 2023

Contract asset at the end of the year 146241

Netinerease![ deereasc) 166241

For the perind 06 Janeary 2023 to 31 Aarch 2025, there has been net incrense of Rs 266241 Lakhs dve to recognition of revemine based on input method whereas bills for
workedone are certified bosed o comrmer condition,

wh o Coniract lintilitey rélating o constroction eolvaces sie bakmeds dud 1o costomeis, Hese anisd wlen a pamiculs milestone pavient exceeds the revenue recogimsad (o dare
wmider the wnput method and odvance ecerved o bong terny constmction . confracts. The amount of Advance received gois adjusied over the comstruction genod as and when
fvodci ng is i de 1o the customer

Particnlars As st Mt
March, 2023

Contract labilimes i the end ol the vesit -
Mot increwse/| decrenso) -

. Sctout belaw is the amaunt nf vevenue fecognised feom:

Particulars Az af 3st
Aarch, 2023

Aunoun included In controct liabiees at e beginnimg of ke period =

Performance oblssstion satislied in previous penod =

B Cost to obtain fhie contract
The Company hns ot incurred any (wcrementil costs of obtaming coniracts with o costoser and therelore. not tecomissd i daset for such costs

E.  Tromsuction price @ [ocated to the remaining perfarmanee sliligations
Thet eransaction price Mo remgtning perforrmanee el oo sholl Te reeeived over theconiraet period i propartion o the work pesfoomed services provided by (he Company

The foblow s tnhle showes nnantisled porformomce ohlipsiEons nesoliing o long=tenn consimeiion comres

Particulars Asat 3 March
kL
MThin Gne g sar 4722610
Moge than one vear o 2 vears 74 533
More than 2 venrs 17505 45
Total I AL0463

**The amoaunt disclosed above dees not include varioble considernbion which 1% canstrained
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Nates ti Boancial statements for the period Trom 06th January 2027 te 31st March 2023
| Al prrronmts ) dndinn Rupess Lakhe onless othirvise stned)

i
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]
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L
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0

Sepvice Concession Arrangements
hsclosre persiant o Appesdix B ol Ind AS 115 "Serviee Concgssion Arrmngem onts™ i3 o5 under

Deserigtion all the arcangement

Trcon Bhai Morbe Bxpressway Limited (freonBAELY, a wholl-ewned subsidiany of frcon Intermational Limited has been ineosporatad 2= 0 Special Puepoze Vihicle
on Janwary 06, 2022 pursaonn o a conditions as stipulaeed o Latier of Award ssued by Maupnnl Highway Aothocity of India (NHATL reon Bha) Morbe
Expressaay Linvivad {eonBNIEL) Dag enered i w0 service concession mmangement on 181 Febromy 2022 with National Highway suthority of India (MEATY
temms of which NHAR { Auvthority ) bas asuthosesed ihe com gy (0 conry the business of Constrnction of Eight Lane access sonirolled Expressway fiom Km 69 800 (o
Em 79783 |desien length 9 983 k| from Bhoj 1o Morhe Section SPUR of Vadodara Mumbal Bxpresswasbereimnfier called the "Vadodam humbat Expressway)
in the Stare of Mobarashira under Bharatmaln Pacyap o (Phose T-Fackapge XV by Bigdo busing thereol (e "Frogect® ) on Hyvbeld Annuity hasis, sohich shall be
partly (aneed by the concessionnare who shall secover its ivestnent and cozts through payment 1o be made by the antherry., n sceordoece wilh the frenns wnd
conedibions sl n e concession ayreaseal,

Significont terms of the arcongement

Period of the Cencession : 13 Years from Commergial Operabion Date {COD).

Congtrsction Penod - 910 dovs from Appointed Dale e from [ 900 2023

Pavmenl Terms @ Bid Progect Cost (BEC ) = Ra. 1436 erore. 409 of the BPC, adjusted for the Pree Indéx Multiphe, shal| e due and payable in 10 equal insialiments
of 4% each during the Constroction period and remaining BPC. adjusted for the Price Index Multiple, stall be dme and pmable in 30 binnowal ingtal meats
comneacing from the 1E0h day of COD

In temns of the sad agreemvent heonBMEL las no nghi to nse the specilicd assels and hins an obligation lo complete consiuction of the project and to keep 1he
project assels in proper workinge coudition inchading all projects agsets whose livey have expired,

A the end of the congession perad. the nssets will e teoneferred back to National Highway Asthorite o bndia (NHALL

In e ge of maiteninl breseh in fevms of agreentent the NHAT and IrcenBMEL have right 1o ternumate the ngreement if ey are not able to cure the event ol detiull in
pecovdance with such sgrednent,

Finuncinl nssets { Service cancessipn receivables)
The company his tecomized receivalife of Rs. 266241 Lakhs under serviee congesdon sarangemenl ind shown nnder Other Finanelal eorrent Assets which it will
receive as per bemms of the contract based on the completion of milestone. as oo 3 15t hlarch 2023 amd 315t March 2022 respectively.

Disclosure of eevenpe wnd profits or joss during the yenr

Particulars

Far the period from DOt Fanuery
2022 | Date of incorporation) io 3051
Mareh 2023

Comiract Revome Rec mmaed

AT I g ng wof cost mcarred

Aavoust of advance recerved Dom Elenl

Aot of retention by Client

Profivl Lossh recopmsed dinim (he period for enchame of construthon sorvive fors finaneial asset

Caoge g due Trom Clenl for Centraa Waorks

26241
2,662 36

005}
2660241

Leases
al  Company o5 @ Lessce

{1} The Company has o leasing arrangement which are non-cancellable w natore, Accordugly, e nghi of wse nssets wnd |ease liabilites bave been recognised by the

i praany.

(u) The Campony has taken Office on lease with [ense terms of 12 months or less. The Compiny applics the “short-term lease’ recopnilion sxemptions for sach leases.

The following tre the amoants recogmised 10 Siatement of profit amd loss

Particulars

For e peroil rom 061h January
2022 (Date of incorparatien) i 3]st
March 2023

Expense relating 1o shodt=term leases | lefer Node | 5) 351
by Company as o Lessor
Company has no leasing arrangenent a3 a leszor,
Dietails oF ducs fo Micrn and Small Enterprises as defincd onder the NSMED Act, 20006
5.8 | Parficofars Asal 3st
March, 202%
ab | The principal amount g the inerest dwe bereon resadning onpaisd to any supplier as o) the emd ofenchaceouming yeon
= Prineipal amount duwe to macr and small estemprisas il
= Interesd due o abeve Tl
by | The mount of inerest paid by the boger i jems of Section 16 off the MSMED Ae 20006 wlong with the pmoonis o the paymens made fo
e supplicr Tevoad the oppoipted day duning ench pecounting yem ni
gl | The amount of tieenest die aed prvible o e peod of delay i making payment (wlhicls have been paid bot beyend the appoisted day
dhrrmg e yeary bot withool adding the inferéss specified nider the MSMED Act 2006 wil
di | The nmount of mterest ascmed ond remaining uepatd of the and of erch aceaunting yem il
gl | The amount of further titerest remaimng due and payable even in the sncceedine vens, until such date whien the mterest dues as above ane
actwally poad to the smalf enterprise for the purpess of disollowance a3 a deduetible expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act
004 - - = g
il

Corporube Sovinl Res ponsihilitg
Thie Com posy 15 mot covensd under section 135 of the Companies Act. 2013 and no C5R expenditure has,
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Notes (o fininciol slatements for the peried from 06 th Jonoary 2022 to 31st March 2023

LN amoimss i lmdian Rupesd Lakhs mkess o henwise shitad )

3 Disclisure parsaant lo section [B6 of the Companies Aet 2003:

3

Phere aee no |omes @ ven, vestnenis made and guoranes given by the Company during the year endmg 31s Macch 2020

Additional Repulstory infor motion:

The M vide riotiFeanion dated 230 March 2027 lois amended Schodule U o ihe Companies Act. 2003 i respect of cerlam disclosures winch are applicable rom Fst Apnl 2021,
The Company has ingorpersted the ¢langes as per Ui said amandineil i the financrat statemens pud below disclosures are made in complimice of the spid amendment :

1y The Company lis wo bansactions with companies struck ofl wder sechion 248 af the Companies At 2013 or Section 360 ol Compamies Ael, 1958 during the finanesal vear

ending 315 Klarch 2023,

ity The Comgraney Bas oot caded o investad i Crypto Coreaey on Yivieal Corgngy durimg e lnancial vear endiog 31s March 2023

(i) The Compuay g0 oot bave aay Benaon goopesty as on 3157 Sarch 2023, where ary proceeding |ns been imigizd o pending agamst the Company for holding any Bemni

property.

(iwl The Compamy do net Lave sy proor period errors o financal year endiog on 3 st March 2020 b0 be diselosed sepacatels oo Sttement of changes in gqmty

|vh The Company has oo casss ol any charees o satisfaction which isvel to be registered with ROC bevomnd the statutory period in the Anancial vearending 3158 M larch 2023

() Dorimg the Mnancinl year 202233 ahe Compamy hove not advesced or loaed or ievested Timds 1o any other personds | orenitviies ), neluding foreien entiges (Intermedionies )
will the gidersiacd ng that e Intermedian gl

i, ety or mdirectly lend o st i olbeer persomsor éntities | dent el my mamer whiotoeve by ol oo belal Dol e conpany { L imale Beneficiivies) of

b pronade amy prammatee, securdy or the like 10 or on bebalfal the Ulimote Beneficianios
vt During the financial year 2022-23, the Company hiave nol ressived any lund from any pepsanls) ve entity s, ingludiing foragn emities (Fussling Party ) with the understanding
twheller recorded in writing or otberorisz ) that the Campary stiall
fah  derectly ormdivecty lend ar invest in other persons or entiiees identficd oy any manaer whatsoever by of on behall of the Funding Party {Ulinnate Benelinnesh of

i) provide amy guarmetes, secunty or the hke on hehall of the Ultimate Beneliciaries,

Pvinnp The Com ey bas nol wranied any 1oaas snd advaness in the nadure of leans 10 prometers, directors, KMVP and affier related pories i te fisoncial vear ending 3751 March 240235,

fix}  The Company doos nothavenny immovable properies a5 ot 3151 Maorch 2023
(%) The Company bins not been declored as wilful defauller by any bank or faancial mstitubion o govemment of any govemmend guthonty i the lnancial year 203223,

[zt Company kool reguined toosubimit sthiement of cornent asscts with the bank and therefore neconcllotion af the staterment filed by the campany with baak fod the books of

accounts 3 mot 4pplicable

(=it} The Company does nof Bave any transacttons: o Goancial venr 203333, wheye the eompany lis novaed the borrowings feom Bnks and finooeial instinmong for e speoific
purpose for whach i was taken al the balance sheel date.
[xitt) The Compamy hive not entered into sy scheme(s) of amangements doetng e vear ending 3151 March 2023
Ixivh The Conipany Tins non entered i iy arsaction ool pecorded in the boaks oF accoqnts thar has Been sieendeved on disclosad os inceme dudng the vear (e 1x assessments
under Hie licome Tax Act, 1961 {guch as search w survey of any oflver rebevail provisions of the Incame Tax Act, 1951
x¥)  Conipony has no recesved say e and donaniens during the venr ending 315t March 2003
i) The Compomy dees nol luwe iy Capiial Woek- in- Progress, Investmen Propenty, mtangible Assets and (ntangible Azeets usder Development as a1 3 Est March. 2023 Dumng (he
yepr 202373 the COn Iy fing ok fevalusd am of its Property_plant pnd cquipment

I xwied The following aceounling mlios are disclosed: -

S.Mo [Particalars Nunteritnr Dendminitor Mai'eh 31, 3023 % ehange Reiisan far
clipnEe mare
thian 25 %
al  [Cunent e Corrent Asscts Carrént Linm ey | 28 NA® N A*
by |Dehi-cquity ratio Tolal bl Sharcholder s Equity 1100 A NA*
¢l |Debi service coverae rabio Earminges for debt service = Netprofir | Dbl serice = hierest 0.0 MNoA NoAY
after rxes + Non-cash operiting & Lease Payments +
Expenses Frincipal Repivnients
dy e on cquity ritio *oed Profits afer laxes — Prefoience Avergpe Shoreholder' s 1430 MNAE A"
Dividend Erjuity
£)  [Imveniory tumaver mlio Cost wl gouds sold Average lnveniory 11,04 NA* AT
0 | Trode recevables tinmover rlio Mel eridin sules= Gross credit les- Averipe Tmile baon N N.A*
sales retm Regaivahle
gl Tradbe poable turnoser ephio Net credif purchases = Cross crodit. | Avern e Trivde Pavahbles (L WA At
purchazes - purchase retom
Ly | Bt capatn ] Lurmoser rali Nel Sales = Totnl sales- snles retum Working capital = it LAY NoAT
Cumend B3t — Curend
lsnhilitbies
it MNel ot ratio el Profit Ned Sales = Toinl spless k.00 o NoA*
seles rarn
it Return an capnl employed Enrmings batore nterest-and taes Capitnl Emploved = a0 N.AY M
Tamizthle Net Wiarh +
Total Debr + Debermad
T Liabilaty
k) |Retumon investmo Income penermed from | nyesm s Investmem 0103 NAT N.A*
{ Fimanee lwonic) -
A Jaily e
*Ax the oancial soegmens are prepaeca for tee (et dme, e percent chinge in e ratie & rzm«nﬁrrhwwrjl'ﬂﬁimf@m_ e
1o Y
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Motes to nanci] statements for the |IEIM Trooe DGk .lulum"r 2022 b 315t AMarch 2023
1Al mmounts i Indian Ropecs Lakhs unless otherwise stled i

n

i3

Recent proneumce ment

Whissry of Corposate AT s (W CA) notifies pew standanfs o0 anepdments 1o the existing stsdids uoder Companies (bwlian Aceounting Stamlands) Bubes as fssued from time 1o
tome v Mlareh 31 2023, MOA smended the Compaies | ndian Accouting Standards) Amendment Rules 2023 as below

Inil AS1- Presentation of Fingncial Statements - This amesdment requires the eatitics todischose their matenal secouting pelicies rather (han their significant sccommime palicies.
The ¢fiective date for adaption of this mncndment i3 an ameal periods beginning on or afler April 1, 7023 The Compnny has evaluaied the antendmen ! and the mipaet ol the
amendment is msignifican! in the smmdalene nneial sttements

Tk AS 8- Avconnting Policies, Changes in Aceonming Estimotes @l Error - This amendment hag imrodsced a definition of “pocomnting esiimates” and ineluded amendmonts to
Ind AS 8 io help cotitics distingmish chonges m accommting policies from changes m accounting estimles. The effective date for adopiion of this amesdment &5 annunl periods
bemnmins on or atter Apel 1, 2025 The Company has eviluated the smendment god there is-no mpaet o itg stiidibone Branceal stoléments,

Jiuel AS 12 = Incomie Tanes = This amendment b narrowed the scope oCihe anital recopmition sxemption so that 1s dees wob apply o oansaciions hat give nse to egual amd offseliing
tempariny differences. The wffective date for atteption of this amendment is anmim| periods beginning on o afler April |, 2023 The Company has evaluatod ihe smendment and here is
nes fmpeael gm 113 sianckalene finoneial saiemeant,

Oiher disclosures

{8} The beon Bliog Morke Expressway limied was incorporated on Obth lnary, 2007 a5 o whally owned salsidiany of Inton Intesmational Limsted, This 15 the fust financial
siatemeni for the period fom 061h January 20232 4o 3 1= March 2025 and heneo cormesponding Guares of the previous vear are not provided.

fiiy The-compiny has entered into oo nprceinenl for Rs 823 39 Crore to finanoe the project from Bank af Barcds on 31008 2022, however, e Company has nod avarled the
sumctioned eredit feiliny for tha period from Qeth Japuary 2023 40 315t March 2023
WHAT his noted the Frioacial Closuare on 30082002 and the Compitay has received 'Appoimed Dage’ e, 19001 2023

(i} Tiere s uo change in the authensed anu issved share capital of e Company dunmg the year However, the Promoier Compony, Ircan Teesatiosnl Limiced i is 2850 Boed
deetin beld oa Gth apnl, 2023, has appeoved e modification of cagital structure of the Cospany to mcrense (he eqoity capital contmbamion by Re 20,38 croe aod seduce the
Qunsi-Equity (Interest Free Loan ) with equivalent amomnt a3 per Lender Banks s Sanctioned term, This, there will be o gddmonal Teaseial soplcation on Promoter Company
Aceortingly, the company will take necessary acrion 10 incrense the authortsed shore capital 1o enahile the company 10 increase its paid up share capital as per Lender Bonks's
Sancteoned fefm.

{ivy The Company has 2 svstem of obtanmng penodic con(imiation of balances [om banks and other parties. So fraswadeoler pavables and loams msd advinces are concemned. the
holanee confirmtion leters were senl o the parbes. Balmwes of some of the Trade Recevables, Diber Auwets, Trade and Other Pavables me sulpect (o
confirmationsreconciliations and consequential sdjustment, if ooy, Reconeilistions are carried ool on onsgoing basis Howeves, manngerent does nol expect o have any
mpgernl fTnoncial impoet of mich pending confirmations / reconeiliotions,

(vi In the oginion of the managemeni, the value of pssets on renlisation in the ordmary course of husiness, will nat be less than the valie ar which these are stated in the Balance
Slyiset

(vl Covld -19 Disclesure
The Conpany has considered s possible «ffects that mi resolt from Covid-19 10 the preparation of is fnacial nedults wluding the secovarability of carmying amounts of
financial and non-financinl asscrs, In developme the assomptions refabng 1o the possible future mcednmties 10 the dlobal economic conditions bechuge of Cownd-19, e
Cotnpany hivs ased Intersial and etemal saorees of infomyation and expects it the eorying amemt of the ascets will be recoverzd. Thie actual fnpaet of iz global healih
pandemic may be dilferenl fom thar which has been estimated, as the Covid-19 situation evolves i ldia and globally. Howeser, the Company will continue 1 chodely monito
oy miaterial chaness to fobure economic cooditions

[vit) Fiymres roonded off 1o the nesrest mpees in Lakh,

For and g bekalf of the Goard of Directors
Ireon Bhoj Movbe ExpresswavL i

Dircetar
(DN -DBS1TO13) B553}
Place: New Daelhil
Date: 12.05.2023
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF IRCON BHOJ MORBE EXPRESSWAY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
2023

The preparation of financial statements of Ircon Bhoj Morbe Expressway Limited for
the year ended 31 March 2023 in accordance with the financial reporting framework
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, is the responsibility of the management
of the Company. The Statutory Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India under Section 139 (7) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion
on the financial statements under Section 143 of the Act, based on independent audit
in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 12 May
2023.

|, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not
to conduct supplementary audit of the financial statements of Ircon Bhoj Morbe
Expressway Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 under Section 143 (6)(a) of the
Act.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Place: New Delhi
Dated:|5.07.2023

Railway Commercial, New Delhi
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